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BOARD REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 14t Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company together with the audited Financial Statements for the Year ended
March 31, 2023.

FINANCIAL / REVIEW

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been
prepared in accordance with Ind AS Rules, 2015. The Financial performance of the Company for
the Financial Year 2022-23 is summarized below:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Yl\?lgf':l? geld Year ended
2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue from operations 39,114.95 15,243.49
Other Income 1082.46 476.63
Total income 40197.41 15720.12
Expenses

Cost of Services Received 7793.45 5589.33
Employee Benefit 3101.19 1994.51
Depreciation & Amortization 5316.20 1540.49
Finance Cost 3597.66 1278.52
Other Expenses 4847.39 2485.55
Total Expenses 24655.89 12888.40
Profit /(loss) before tax 15541.52 2831.72
Current Tax 970.65 -
Deferred tax(credit)/Charge 2968.68 1292.20
Tax Charge related to prior years - -
Net Profit /(loss)for the year 11602.19 1539.52
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the 3.82 51.14
year

;::31 comprehensive income/(loss) for the 11606.01 1590.66

OPERATIONS

Your Company has recorded a Total Revenues from operations are Rs. 39,114.95 Lakhs during
the year 2022-23 compared with Rs. 15,243.49 Lakhs during the year 2021-22. Your Company
has earned a profit after tax of Rs. 11602.19 Lakhs, as compared with the profit of
Rs. 1539.52 Lakhs during the previous year.
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Your Company provides various end to end IT related services at Indira Gandhi International
Airport (IGIA), New Delhi, Rajiv Gandhi International Airport (RGIA) at Hyderabad and Manohar
International Airport, Goa amongst other Airports such as Kannur and Kuwait. The IT services
consist of providing a common infrastructure of Local Area Network (LAN), Flight Display
Systems, Check-in facility systems, Public Announcement Systems and Data Centre services.
Entertainment displays for passenger convenience is also being provided through this common
infrastructure. The services are provided to passengers, airlines, ground handling agents,
concessionaires / retailers and regulatory bodies (e.g., Immigration, Customs).

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of the Company.
EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occurring between March 31, 2023 and the date of this Report

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share capital of the Company is Rs. 10,50,00,000 comprising of 1,05,00,000
equity shares of Rs.10/- each. The issued and paid-up share capital is Rs. 50,000,000/-
consisting of 5,000,000 shares of Rs.10/- each. During the year under review, your Company
has neither issued shares with Differential Voting Rights nor granted Stock Options nor Sweat

Equity.

SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, or Associate Companies of its own and hence the
statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/ Associate

Companies/ Joint Ventures, as required to be provided in Form-AOC 1, is not applicable.

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR.

Since your Company was not having any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company, during
the year under review this section is not applicable.

DIVIDEND

In order to ensure sustainable growth in operations and revenue, your Directors do not
recommend any dividend for the year under review.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Board of Directors of your company has not recommended any transfer of profits to
reserves.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board of Directors met 10 (Ten) times during the financial year. The intervening gap
between two consecutive meetings was not more than the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013. The details are given in the Corporate Governance section of this Report.

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review the Company has neither invited nor accepted any fixed deposits
from the public.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS

The Company has 2 Independent Directors on the Board of the Company. The Company has
received necessary declarations from all the Independent Directors required under Section
149(7) stating that they meet the criteria of Independence as per Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Further a declaration has been received from all Independent Directors pursuant to Rule 6 of
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, affirming that they
have registered themselves with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in the Independent
Director’s Data Bank. In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors are proficient
and have requisite experience and expertise to undertake the responsibilities conferred on
them.

However, post closure of F.Y 22-23 the Board has received the Resignation Letter from the
existing Independent Director dated July 25, 2023 effective from July 27, 2023.

Further the Board in its Meeting dated July 27, 2023 has appointed 2 Independent Director,
Mr Arun Balakrishnan and Mr. Adi Seshavataram Cherukupalli on the Board of the Company.
The Company has duly received necessary declarations from all Independent Director.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

IN PURSUANCE OF SECTION 134 (5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, THE DIRECTORS
HEREBY CONFIRM THAT:

(a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

(b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied them consistently (except
IND AS 116 'Leases' which is effective for the Company with effect from 1 April 2019) and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit of the
Company for that year;

(c) the proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
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(d) the annual Financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 are prepared
on a going concern basis;

(e) proper internal financial controls have been laid down and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

(f) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The Company has not given guarantees and provided securities to any other parties and
Company has not made any investment during the year. The details of loans given is provided in
note 5A of the standalone financial statements.

AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT

STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on November 29, 2021, the shareholders of the
Company appointed M/s S M M P & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm registration no.
120438W with ICAI) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 consecutive years
from the Conclusion of the 12th AGM till the Conclusion of 17t» AGM to be held in the Year 2026.

The requirement of annual ratification of the Statutory Auditor’s appointment has been
dispensed with, accordingly, no resolution is proposed for ratification of their appointment. The
Company has received a certificate from M/s S M M P & Associates, Chartered Accountants
confirming their eligibility to continue as Auditors of the Company.

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors U/s 143(12) during the Financial Year 2022-23.

The Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and
do not call for any further comments. And there are no qualifications reported by the Auditors
during the Financial year 2022-23.

AUDITORS REPORT

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by SMMP & Associates,
Statutory Auditors, in their report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

The Company as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rules made
thereunder, has appointed JVS & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial
Auditor of the Company from Financial Year 2022-23.

The Secretarial Auditor has Audited the Secretarial records of the Company and there is no
secretarial audit qualification for the year under review. The Secretarial Audit Report for the

year ended March 31, 2023 is annexed as Annexure-1 and forms part of this report.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has appointed M/s. Ernst & Young
LLP as the Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24.
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COST AUDITORS

The Company is not required to maintain the cost records as required under section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 and the Cost
Audit requirement is also not applicable on the Company for the Financial year 2022-23.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditors of the
Company have not reported any frauds to the Audit Committee or to the Board of Directors
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, including rules made thereunder.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
OUTGO:

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The activities of the Company do not involve any manufacturing and are not energy
intensive. The Company, being a provider of information technology services, endeavours
to use technology in its day to day operations and to achieve optimization of energy to the
extent possible.

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Not Applicable

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy: Not
Applicable

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s: Not Applicable
(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

The Company, being a provider of information technology services, endeavours to use
technology in its day to day operations and to achieve optimization of energy to the extent
possible.

(i) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption -NA.

(ii) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, e.g, product improvement, cost
reduction, product development, import substitution, etc. - Nil

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year), following information may be furnished - Nil
(a) Details of technology imported- Technology Imported -Nil
(b) The year of import-_NA
(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed- NA
(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons

therefore- Nil

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil
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Q FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

There are no earnings in foreign exchange and an amount of Rs. 30,16,72,567 /-
(Rupees Thirty Crores Sixteen Lakhs Seventy Two Thousand Five Hundred and
Sixty Seven only) has recorded as outgo in foreign exchange during the financial
year 2022-23.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact
the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India.

DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board of your Company has laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal controls are adequate and operating effectively. Your Company
has policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s Policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Pachigolla Rama Krishna (DIN: 03327834) being the longest in the office, will retire by
rotation at forthcoming Annual General Meeting and who being eligible has offered himself for

re-appointment. A brief resume of Mr. Pachigolla Rama Krishna is given in the Notice of the
AGM.

During the year Board of Directors in its meeting held on April 28, 2022, based on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has appointed Mr. Rishi Mehta
as the president and CEO of the Company w.e.f. April 01, 2022 and appointed Mr. Sailendu
Panda as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. April 01, 2022. The Board in its
meeting held on July 22, 2022 has also appointed Mr. Heera Lal as the Company Secretary of the
Company w.e.f. June 24, 2022.

During the year under report, Mr. Heera Lal, Company Secretary was also ceased to be Company
Secretary of the Company w.e.f. January 20, 2023.

The Board places on record their deep appreciation for the services rendered by Mr. Heera Lal.

During the year under report, Board in its meeting held on March 28, 2023 has also appointed
Ms. Karishma Aggarwal as the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. March 22, 2023.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year
with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis.
During the year, the Company had entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with
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related parties which were approved by the Audit Committee and the Board under Section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every
individual working in its premises through various interventions and practices. The Company
always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and
harassment including sexual harassment.

The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. The
policy aims at prevention of harassment of employees as well as contractors and lays down the
guidelines for identification, reporting and prevention of sexual harassment. During the year
ended March 31, 2023, the Company has not received any complaints pertaining to sexual
harassment.

APPLICATION/PROCEEDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the year, the Company has not made any application under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) and there is no proceeding pending under IBC.

ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT WITH ANY BANK OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTION
There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Board in its meeting held on November 24, 2021 has dissolved CSR Committee. The
functions and responsibilities of the CSR Committee are being discharged by the Board itself.
The Company has formulated the CSR policy as required under Section 135 of the Companies
Act 2013. (Attached as Annexure-2)

In accordance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount to
be spent during the financial year 2022-23, worked out to be Rs. 38.04 lakhs. The Annual Report
for the financial Year ended March 31, 2023 is attached as Annexure-3.

Further, since the amount to be spent in the F.Y. 23-24 exceeds 50 lakhs, Company is required to
constitute CSR Committee.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is as under: Nil

Name | Desig Remun | Nature of | Qualificati | Date of | Age of | Particular ﬂgty,jelat-rve’
nation | eration | Employ-ment on and | joining | Employe | s ef—tast | Share | of any
receive | Contractual or | Experience /’e/// employm | held director

d(Rs. W—ﬁn‘ﬁfs)/ ent by the | or

L in — emplo | ma
] Lacs) /—ytfe’ﬂ r of the
| the Compan
// Comp |y, ifany.

- — ] any
P
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Company believes that Corporate Governance as more than just regulatory requirement.
Your Company ensures the Corporate Governance by adopting the transparency in its
operations and is driven by its core values viz., ethical practices, concern for people at work,
delight for customers and wealth creation for shareholders. These values provide the
foundation for the Company’s approach to sound corporate governance.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a) Composition: As on the date of this report, the Board of the Company comprises of the
following Directors:

S.No. | Name of the Director Position Category
1. Mr. Adi Seshavataram Director Independent
Cherukupalli
2 Mr. Arun Balakrishnan Director Independent
3 Mr. P. Rama Krishna Director Non- Executive
4. Mr. Sudhir Maheshwari Director Non- Executive
5 Mr. Davinder Kumar Chugh | Director Non- Executive
6 Ms. Gunjan Beria Director Non- Executive
7. Mr. Gopala Krishna Kishore | Director Non- Executive
Surey

b) Meetings of the Board:

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business
strategies/policies and review the financial performance of the Company. In case of
business exigencies, the Board’s approval is taken by way of circular resolutions. The
circular resolutions are noted at the subsequent Board Meeting.

The notice of each Board Meeting is given in writing to each Director. The Agenda along
with the relevant notes and other material information are sent in advance separately to
each Director and in exceptional cases tabled at the meeting. This ensures timely and
informed decisions by the Board.

The Board met 10 (Ten) times during the financial year 2022-23. The meetings of the
Board were held on the following dates during the year ended on March 31, 2023:

April 28,2022

May 31, 2022

July 22, 2022
August 30,2022
October 12,2022
November 21, 2022
December 16,2022
February 21, 2023

© NGO E WD
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9. March 10, 2023
10. March 28, 2023

The details of attendance at Board Meetings either in person or through video
conferencing during the financial year 2022-23 and at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company are detailed below:

Name of Attendance at the Board Meeting(s) Attendance
Directors/DIN Held Held Attended at last AGM
during the
tenure
Mr. P. Rama Krishna 10 10 10 Yes
Mr. Raghunandanan GK 10 10 8 Yes
Mr. I V Srinivas Rao 10 10 10 Yes

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE CONSTITUTION

a)

b)

Composition of the Committee.

As on the date of this report the composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Name Position Category
Mr. Arun Balakrishnan Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Adi Seshavataram .

) Member Independent Director
Cherukupalli
Ms. Gunjan Beria Member Non-Executive Director

The composition of the Audit Committee meets the requirements of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Composition, quorum, power, role and scope of the Audit
Committee is in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 which include
amongst others:

* Reviewing of financial reporting system, internal controls system, discussion on
financial results and interaction with auditors;

¢ Recommendation for the appointment of Auditors and their remuneration;

¢ Reviewing of internal audit reports and significant related party transactions; and

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee. All recommendations
made by the Audit Committee during the year were accepted by the Board.

Meetings of the Audit Committee:

3 (Three) Meetings of the Audit Committee was held on during the year ended on March
31, 2023:

1. July 22,2022

2. October 12,2022

3. February 21, 2023
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The details of attendance at Audit Committee Meetings either in person or
through video conferencing during the financial year 2022-23 are detailed

below:
Name of Directors/DIN Attendance at the Board Meeting(s)
Held Held during Attended
the tenure
Mr. P. Rama Krishna 3 3 3
Mr. Raghunandanan GK 3 3 3
Mr. L.V. Srinivas Rao 3 3 3

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

a) Composition of the Committee.

As on the date of this report the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is as follows:

Name Position Category
Mr. Arun Balakrishnan Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Adi Seshavataram Member Independent Director
Cherukupalli
Mr Sudhir Maheshwari Member Non-Executive Director

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meets the
requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

3 (Three) Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on during
the year ended on March 31, 2023:

1. April 28, 2022

2. July 22,2022

3. March 28,2023

The details of attendance at Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings
either in person or through video conferencing during the financial year 2022-23
are detailed below:

Name of Directors/DIN Attendance at the Board Meeting(s)
Held Held during Attended
the tenure
Mr. P. Rama Krishna 3 3 3
Mr. Raghunandanan GK 3 3 3
Mr. L.V. Srinivas Rao 3 3 3
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Date: September 14, 2023
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Annexure-1
FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2023
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

WAISL Limited

CIN: U72200KA2009PLC051272
No. 109, K.H. Road, Shanthi Nagar,
Bangalore - 560027, Karnataka

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by WAISL Limited (hereinafter called the
‘Company’) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 (“Audit Period”), complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the
provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder (not
applicable to the company during the audit period);

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- (not applicable to the company during the audit period)

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018.

vi. Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

a. Information Technology Act, 2000 and the rules made thereunder
b. Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 and the rules made thereunder
c. Software Technology Parks of India rules and regulations

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and General
Meetings.

Accordingly, we state that during the period under review there were adequate systems and
processes in place to monitor and ensure compliance with various applicable laws and that the
Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc., mentioned above subject to the following observation:

During the period under review, the number of members/shareholders in the company is five
which is below the minimum number of member requirement of a public company as per the
Companies Act 2013. However as on date, the Company is having optimum number of members
as per Companies Act, 2013.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs). The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Shorter notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent in compliance with the provisions of the Act, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as
the case may be and no dissenting views have been recorded.
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no other specific events/actions in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. having a major bearing
on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules etc. except the company
has approved in its board meeting held on May 31, 2022, shifting of registered office of the
company from the “State of Karnataka” to the “National Capital Territory of Delhi”.

Place: New Delhi
Date:13.09.2023

For JVS & Associates

Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Jyoti Sharma

(Proprietor)

Practicing Company Secretary

FCS No. 8843; CP No.10196

UDIN: FO08843E001002110

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE A”
and forms an integral part if this report.

Annual Report 2022-23_ WAISL Limited




Annexure A
To
The Members
WAISL Limited
CIN: U72200KA2009PLC051272
No. 109, K.H. Road, Shanthi Nagar,
Bangalore - 560027, Karnataka

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

(1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

(2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for
my opinion.

(3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

(4) Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

(5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management as conducted the affairs of the
company.

Place: New Delhi
Date:13.09.2023

For JVS & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Jyoti Sharma

(Proprietor)

Practicing Company Secretary
FCS No. 8843; CP N0.10196
UDIN: FO08843E001002110
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Annexure-2
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy

WAISL Limited (the Company) has adopted the CSR Policy. The Company recognizes that its
business activities have wide impact on the societies in which it operates and therefore an
effective practice is required giving due consideration to the interests of its stakeholders
including shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, business partners, local communities
and other organizations.

The Company is driven by the vision to make a difference, specifically to society by contributing
to the economic development of the country and improving the quality of life of the local
communities. Towards this vision, the Company, through GMR Varalakshmi Foundation
(GMRVF), partners with the communities around the businesses to drive various initiatives in
the areas of education, health, hygiene, sanitation, empowerment, livelihood and community
development.

Projects / Activities / Programmes proposed to be undertaken under CSR Policy

As recommended by the CSR Committee of the Board and as per the approval of the Board of
directors the Company contributes or carries out its CSR activities or contribute funds to
GMRVF for utilization broadly towards the following projects / activities / programmes:

i. Education:
. Support for promotion of education of all kinds (school education, technical,
higher, vocational and adult education), to all ages and in various forms, with a focus on
vulnerable and under-privileged;
. Education for girl child and the underprivileged by providing appropriate
infrastructure and groom them as future citizens and contributing members of society;

ii. Health, Hygiene and Sanitation:
o Ambulance services, mobile medical units, health awareness programmes and
camps, medical check-ups, HIV/AIDS awareness initiatives, health care facilities and
services, sanitation facilities;
. Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promotion of preventive health
care and sanitation, and making available safe drinking water;
. Reducing child mortality and improving maternal health;

iii. Empowerment & Livelihoods:

. Employment enhancing vocational skills training, marketing support and other
initiatives for youth, women, elderly, rural population and the differently abled, and
livelihood enhancement projects;

. promoting gender equality, empowering women, working for senior citizens and
measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups;
. Assist in skill development by providing direction and technical expertise for
empowerment;

iv. Community Development:
. Encouraging youth and children to form clubs and participate in community
development activities such as like cleanliness drives, plantation drives etc;
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Vi.

Vii.

viil.

iX.

Xi.

Xil.

Environmental sustainability:

. Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora
and fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and
maintaining quality of soil, air and water;

Heritage and Culture:

. Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings
and sites of historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries;
promotion and development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;

Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, paralympic sports and
olympic sports;

Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the
Central Government or the State Governments for socio-economic development and
relief, and funds for the welfare of the Scheduled Castes, Scheduled Tribes, other
backward classes, minorities and women;

Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic
institutions which are approved by the Central Government;

Rural development projects;

Such other activities included in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 as may be
identified by CSR Committee from time to time, which are not expressly prohibited.

The activities undertaken in pursuance of the normal course of business, activities undertaken
outside India and activities that benefit exclusively the employees of the company or their family
members shall not be treated as CSR activities of the Company.

Further, the surplus arising out of the CSR activity shall not form part of business profits of the
Company.
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Annexure-3
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Activities for the Financial year

1.A brief outline on CSR policy of the Company:

The Company endeavors to integrate social and environment concerns in its business operations. The Company
demonstrates an increased commitment at all levels in the organization to operate business in an economically,
socially and environmentally sustainable manner.

2.Composition of the CSR Committee:

Sl.No. Name of Director Designation / | Number of | Number of meetings of
Nature of | meetings of CSR | CSR Committee
Directorship Committee held | attended during the

during the year year

The Board in its meeting held November 24, 2021 has dissolved CSR Committee. The functions and
responsibilities of the CSR Committee are being discharged by the Board itself.

3.Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the Company: Not Applicable

4.Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not Applicable

5.Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:

SI.No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be set-off for
from preceding Financial | the Financial Year, if any (Rs. In
Years (Rs. In Lakh) Lakh)
1 2022-2023 0 0

6.Average Net Profit of the Company as per section 135(5):Rs.19.02 Crores

7.a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):Rs.38.04 lakhs

b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: 0
c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: 0
d)Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).Rs. 38.04 lakhs

8.(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent Amount Unspent
for the Financial Year
Rs. 38.04 lakhs Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Unspent CSR Account as per | under Schedule VII as per second proviso
section 135(6) to section 135(5)
Amount Date of Transfer Name of the | Amount Date of Transfer
Fund
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the Financial Year:

§1 2 (@ | @ (5) (6) 0] (8) (9 (10) (11)
SI. | Na |litem | Local | Location | Project Amount Amount Amount Mode Mode of
me |[from | area of  the | Duration allocated spent in |transferred | of Implementation
No. | of fthe (Yes/ | project for the | the to Unspent| Implem | - Through
the |[list of| No) project current CSR entatio | Implementing
Proj a_ctivi State Dist financial Account_for n - | Agency
ect (fties rict Year the project| Direct
in as per| (Yes/N
Sche Section o) Name CSR
dule 135(6) Registra
Vil to tion
the Number
Act
Not Applicable
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the Financial Year:
(1 (2) (3) 4 (5) (6) (7) (8)
SI.No. | Name of the Item from | Local | Location of the | Amount spent | Mode of | Mode of
Project the list of | area project for the Project | implementation | implementation -
activities (Yes/ - Direct (Yes/No) | Through
in No) implementing agency
schedule
VIl to the State | District
Act
Name | CSR
Registration
Number
Mazumdar
Shaw - .
1. . - - - Rs. 3,00,000 -
Medical
Foundation
GMR
2. Varalakshmi | - - - Rs. 35,04,567 | - - -
Foundation
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:0
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 38.04 lakhs
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil
SI. No. | Particular Amount

(i)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

Rs. 38.04 lakhs

(ii)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Rs. 38.04 lakhs

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous | Nil
financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil
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9.

10.

(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. No. | Preceding | Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund | Amount
Financial | transferred to | spentin specified under Schedule VIl as | remaining to
Year Unspent CSR | the per section 135(6), if any be spent in
Account reporting succeeding
under section | Financial Name | Amount | Date of | Financial
135 (6) Year of the transfer Years
Fund

Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s):

M @ (3) (4) (5 (6) (7 (8) 9
Sl. | Project | Name Financial Project | Total Amount | Cumulative | Status of the
No. | ID of the | Year in | duration | amount spent on | amount project -
Project | which the allocated | the spent at | Completed
project was for the | project the end of | /Ongoing
commenced project in the | reporting
reporting | Financial
Financial | Year
Year

Not Applicable

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

(asset-wise details).
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Not Applicable

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their
address etc: Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the
capital asset): Not Applicable

11.Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per

Section 135(5): Not Applicable

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For WAISL Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
P Ramakrishna Sudhir Maheshwari
Director Director
DIN: 03327834 DIN: 02376365

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 14, 2023
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WAISL Limited (CIN:U72200KAZ000PLCD51272)
Balance Shest as at 31 March 2023
{All amount in Rupees Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

As at As at
Particulars Nt . 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Mon-currant asgets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 3 36,535.10 0, 267099
(5] Capital work in prigress 3 1.0%96.64 13,928.43
[} Intangible dssets 3 3. 165.20 3,528.23
{d} Financial assets
Loans S8 67125 1,379.31
(2} Income Lax assets (net) B 41287
() Deferved tax astets (nat) 7 - 453,58
(g} Dther non-ourrent asseTs in 23,93 23.92
Total non-current assets 43,492.17 29.394.27
Current assets
(&) Financial gssets
{1} Trade recenables B 7.802.38 1,341.27
[} Cash and cash equialents 5 5, 746,98 6,681 83
{iily Rank baiance other than (i) above A 7,907.52 4,504.44
{iw) Unbillied revenue 5 1,675.65 1,159 88
{w} Loans 56 1,006, 88 G20
{wil Dither financial assets bt 21400 53801
() Income Lax assets (et B 385 1,244.14
() Dher urrent aSeets it 7,603.74 5,136.94
Total current assets 32,961.11 21,227.20
Total assets Mﬁ 50,621.47
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(&) Equity shane capital 11 SO0.00 500,00
(b} Othar aquity B 16,754 68 5 14667
Total equity 17,254.68 5, 648.67
Liabilities
Hon-current liabilitles
{a} Financial liabilites
Barrowings 13 3403270 24,805,200
{b) Frowissorns 15 63.97 35,24
(£} Deferred bax labilities {net) A 3,516.44 -
Total non-current liabilities 33,613.11 24,870.44
Current liabilities
{a) Financial Eabdities
(i} Borrowings 13 13,184.74 5,204,773
(i} Trade payaides 17
{2) Total outstanding dues of micro entes prises and simall enterprses 162.81 5846
(b} Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and. small 2,611,34 3,661.01
e prises
(Wi} Other financial liabdities 14 7,964.71 10810048
() Other current Batilites 18 1,478 66 26503
) Provisions 16 2.65
{d} [nooine Tax Listilities {Net] 168 183.23
Total current liabilities = 25,585.49 20,102.36
Total equity and liabilities 76,453.28 50 52147
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

Cap aroompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements

A5 per pur report of even date attached
For 5 M M P & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 120438

v
Mudit Lakhotia

Membership No. 417827
Partner

Place: laipur

bate: of [od| 2923
WOIN - 25419 8 298G I 2B 2000

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of

P. Ramakrishna
Careckor
DM D3327834

S

Rishi Mehta
Presicent & CED

Xos L

arishma Aggarwal

Company Secretary
M No -AT0937

Plage: New Delhi
Care

[rector
DTN 01541363

Panda
Chief Fnance Officer




WAISL Limited (CIN:U72200KA2009PLC0O51272)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2 MNote For the year ended For the year ended
Particdian No 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income

{a) Revenue from operations 19 39,114.95 15,243.49
{b) Other income 20 1,082.46 476.63
Total Income 40,197.41 15,720.12
Expenses
(&) Cost of services received #1 7,793.45 5,589.33
{b) Employee benefits expense 22 3.101.19 1,994.51
() Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 5.316.20 1,540.49
(d) Finance oosts 24 3,597 668 1,278.52
(e} Dther expenses 25 4,847.39 2,185.55
Total expenses 24,655.89 12,888.40
Profit before tax 15,541.52 2,831.72
Tax expenses
(a) Current tax 26 970.65 %
(o) Deferred tax (credit)/charge 2,068.68 1,292.20
{c) Tax charge relating to prior years - -
Profit after tax for the year 11,602.19 1,539.52
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassifiad to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan 510 68,34
Income tax relating to above (1.28) [17.20)
Other comprehensive income for the year 3.82 51.14
Total comprehensive income for the year 11,606.01 1,590.66
Earnings per share (face value of Rs. 10/ each) 38
Basic (in Rs.) 232.04 30,79
Diluted {in Rs.) 232.04 30.79
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

See accompanying notes lforming part of the Financial Statements

Ag per our report of even date attached

Mudit Lakhotia
Membership Mo, 417827

Partrver

Pace: Jaipur

pate: o5 fo #2023 Rishi Mehta
President & CFO

V91N - 23419427 BELF 7 1y Lovy

o2

r’/
Karishma Aggarwal

Company Secretary
M No -AT0927

Place: Mew Delhi
Date :

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For S M M P & Company WAISL Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firiri Registration MNo. 1204
J ,/
P. Ramakrishna
Director

DIN: 03327834

~ 9‘“‘-&1 @

IVS RAD
Director
DIN: 015491362

{ﬁﬁﬂi L

Sailendu Panda
Chief Finance Officer




WAISL Limited (CIN:U72200KA2009PLCOS1272)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax 15,541,52 283172
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortsation expense 531620 1,540.99
Finance costs 3,587.66 1,278.52
Interest income 1545.77) {261.63)
Interest income on Inter- corporate deposits {203.76) {215.00)
Interest cn income tax refund (327.88) =
Prowvision for doubtful receivables (net) (5.05) 77.53
Urnirealised exchange difference {net) {4.87) 468
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 23,.368.05 5,256.31
Mowvement in working capital
{Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (BAS6.07) 1,429.65
{Increase)/decrease in Loans, other financial assets and other assets (2,068.49) {3,393.71)
Increase/{decrease) In trade payables {945 323 1,383.61
Increase/(decrease) in other financial Eabilities 240.00 [245.96)
Increasef{decrease) In other liabilities and provisions 333.95 4941
Cash generated from operations 14,472.16 4,439.31
Income tax paid (net of refund) 2,504.32 (1,493.32)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 16,976.48 2,945.99
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (after (24,437.55) {15,467.50)
Invesstment. in Fixed deposits more than three months {Net) 13.405.08) 97.28
Interest receed 481.86 239.15
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (27,358.77) (15,131.07)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Froceeds from long term borrowings 19,884 .95 20,571.10
Repayment of long-term borrowings {5,650.00) (4,054.17)
Finance costs paid 13.787.52) 11,197 84}
Net cash flows from financing activities { C) 10,447.43 15,319.09
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 65.14 3,134.01
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 668183 3,547.82
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 9) 6,746.97 6,681.83

Mote:

The above Cash Flow has beéen prepared under the "Indirect Method® as set aut in the Ind AS-7 on Statément of Cash Flows,

See accompanying notes forming part of the Finandial Statements

As per our report of even date attachied
For S M M P & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Ro. 120438 W

Mudit Lakhotia
Membership No. 417527
Partner

Place: Jaipur
Date: g SR EYES
Udm - 434 148298, ey JZ Llooh

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
WAISL Limited

v St

P. Ramakrishna
Director
DIN: 03327834

I¥S RAD
Director
DIN: 01541362

F
9 (,_ﬁ&'
Sailendu Panda
Chief Firance Officer

Karishma Aggarwal
Company Secretary
M Mo -AY0927

Place: Mew Delhi
Date -




WAISL Limited (CIMN:L ?IIIJIIH(A!DD!IHCDE 1272)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2. Equity share capital

Particulars

As at As at

31 March2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 500.00 500.00
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the clrrent reparting period 500,00 500,00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at the end of the year 500.00 200.00

b. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
i Other comprehensive

Particulars Retained Earnings income/ (Loss) Total
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,602.85 {44.84) 3,558.01
Profitf (loss} for the year 1,539,52 - 1,539.52
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - 51.14 51.14
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 1,539.52 51.14 1,590.66
Balance as at 1 April 2022 42.37 6.30 5,148,
Profit for the year 11,602.19 K 1L602.19
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - 382 3.82
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 11,602.19 3.82 1160601
Balance as at 31 March 2023 _m&& ;g,;! ;j,lsd,.ﬁ

See Acoompanying notes forming part of the Firancial Statements

As pEF our report of even date attached
ForSsMMPR Company

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Mo, 120438 W

Mudit Lakhotia
Membership Mo, 417827
Partner

Place: Jaipur

ote: 05 (03 2623

Voin - &5#:«?&?2? BLNT 2 Locon

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Limited

WAISL \% &

f——w

P. Ramakrishna IVS RAD
Director Director
DIN: 03327834 DIN; 01591362
ﬁr"'\. g o
A Q@‘-”(
i 7 % :
r:unu’x sﬁﬁﬁ
President & CEQ Chief Finance Officer

Hnrlﬂm,::gqamal

Comparny Secretary
M No -A7paz7

Place: New Delhi
Drate




WAISL Limited (CIN:UT2200KA2009PLCOS 1272)

nancial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

2.1

2.2,

(a}

(b)

()

{d)

(@)

Company information

Company s domicilad and headquartered i India, The registered office of the Comgany is situated at K.H, Road, Shanthi Nagar, Bangalore S60027. As on 01
April 2019, the Company's 11% equity shares were heid by Wipro Limited, 26% equity shares held by Dethi Irtermational Airport. Limited | DIaLn and 63%

The Comgany s primarily formed to render senvices such as desigring, deploying, mairdaining mformation and communicatian technology infrastructure and
applications for identified airports and airport specific information technoiogy architecture,

The Company has entered into a Master Service Agresment CMSAT) with DEAL in Octabier 2009, 25 armended Fram time fo time, te provide, hardware, software,
operation and malntenance services @t Indica Gandhi Intermational Airpart CIGT Arpart’) till 26 July 2070, Moreover the Company has entered o a new
Concession Agrdemant CCAT with DIAL 30 September 2019 to provide, hardware, software, operation and maintenance services at Indira Gandh Internationa
Airpert (1GI Airport) for an initia) perod of 15 (Fifteen) Years with effect from 27 Juby 2030, Further, the Company has entered into a new Concession
Agresment (A"} wilh GMRE Hyderabiad International Airport Limited (GHIALY ‘on 12 March 2020 1o prowide, hardware, software, operaticn and maintenance
sorvices at Rafv Gandhi Internationad Airport (RGT Airport? for an initial penod of 18 (Eighteen) Years with effect from 1 July 2000, The Company has also
signed @ license agreemnent on 03 March 2021 with GMR: [nternational Airport Limited For 1T works and 11 services at Greenfield International Airpart st MOPA,
Goa for a period bl 30 May 2059, Cormpany bas officially commenced aperations at Goa Aiepart on 5th Janwary 2073,

The finandial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 werg approved by the Board of Directars and authorised for 1ssue on 05 Juby 2073
Basis of preparation

ended 31 March 2022,

(i} The Financial Statemeants have been Prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that have been measured a8 fair value. at the
end of the reparting period, fas explained in accounting policy regarding financial Hrstruments),

Functional and presentation currency
These Ananciasl statements are presented i Indian Ripees (Rs.), which i also tha Company’s functinal Curmercy.

Use of estimates and judgements 3 !
Ine preparing these Financial Statements, management has made judgements, etimates and assumplions that affect the application af acoounting policies and the
reported amounts of assels, liabiities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from thece estimates,

Estimates and underying assumplions are reviewsd on an ofngoing basis. Revisions to arcounting estimates are recognised prospectivaly,

Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying ascounting policies that have the most signsficant effects on the amounts recogrised in the financaal statements
is inclisded in the Following netes:

Mote 2.2 faliiiy) and 3 — messurement of useful fife of Property, Plart and Equepment

Nete 2.2 (b} and 4 - Intangible sssets

Mote 2.2 (c) — determinang whether an AMENGETENL CONLAINS  lease and its classification inkg firance lease or operating leass {50 refer note 33)
Mete 2.2(h} — provisions amd contingent liabilities {(also refer note 1)

Nate 22011, 6 and 26 - Income taxes

Nate 2.2(0) and 19 - Reverys

Wmmm
Informatian about assumptians and estimation uncertainthes that have 3 significant risk of resulting in-a material adjustment in the vear ended 31 March 2023 is
included i the following notes:

Poote 251} and 7 - racognition of deferred ta assets: avaifabitty of fulure taxabie profit

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclasures reguire the measurement of fair values, for bath: financial assers and labilites,

Falir values are categorised into differerit leviels in & fair valie hierardhy based on the npuits used in the vaduation techniques as folfows,

Lewel i quoted prices {unadijusted) in acthe markets for identics! asels or falilities,

Lewed £ puts other than guated prices included in Level 1 that are abservable for the asset or liability, efther diractly (i, as prices} or indirectly {l.e. deried
froam pricas).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liabifity that are not based on observable market data (unobservabie Impuats),

When measuring the far value of an asset or 4 lizbility, the Compary uses ohservatla miarket data as far as possible, If the INPULs L 10 measure the fair value
of an assat or a liabdlity Fall into defferent leweds of the Fair value nisrarchy. then the fair value messurement is categorizad in its entiesty In the same level of the
Fair value ierarchy as the Iowest lewed input that is sigrsficant b the entire Measmement,

Significant accounting policies

Property, Plant and Eguipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of Property, Mant and Equipment are measyrad at cost, which inclades cagitalised borrowing costs, less atcumilated degreciation and arcumulated
impairmnent losses, if any,

Cost of an item of Property, Plant and Eduapraent comprises it5 purch including import disties and non-refundable purchase tawes, after deducting trade

discounts and rebates; any directiy attributable cost of bringing 1 ing: condition for its intended Lss and estimated costs of dismantling -ane..
removing the item and restoring the site an which it is locateq, i 7 i




WAISL Limited {HN:U?!ZHUWPLWE 1272%
Motes to Financial ﬂuhnmfnrmmrﬂldad 21 March 2023
{All amaunt in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

by

(e}

(d)

If Significant parts of an em of Progerty, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for a5 separale jtems (Major components) of
Froperty, Plant and Equipment.

(1) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditune is capitatised only if it 5 probable that the futire acanamic benefits associated with the expenditire will fow ta the Carmpany.

Degreciation is calouated on cost of ems of Property, Plant and Equipment tess Hapir estimated residual valges oyer e estimated wseful lives wsing the
straight-line method, and is recognised in the Staterment of Profit ang Lirss,

The estimated ysefid lives of ems of Property, Plant and Coiprent are as follows:
Asset Management estimate of useful life

Furniture and fixtires 3 yemrg
Office equigment 5 vears
Computers and Metwork Bguipments 3 years to 6 years

condition, technalogical obsmescence and other MREOF prevailing exterrna factors and ransequent advice, the manadgement Defieves that itc sstimates of usefl
lives as ghven ahove best represent the period over whicks Mmanagemant expacts to use these 4552tE, With the effect of any changes i estimale ane being
A Counted appropniately,

Depreciation on additions (dispesais) is provided on a Pro-rata bass e, from {upte) the date on which 2558t s ready for e idicposed off),

Intangible assets

Fallowing initial recognition, itangible assets are carried 3t cost kess any arcumulated amartisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intermaliy
COgts, are n

generated intangibies, excluding capitatsed development ot capitalised and the releted expenditure i reflected in Statement of Frofit and Loss in the
Penod i which the 2xpendibue is incurmed

Amortization of intangibles - Intangible assets with finite: Useful lves that are acquired separately are carried gt o5t less accumulated anmortisation and
Stcumalabed impasrment losses if any, Amartisation i5 retoanised on 3 steaight-line basis aver (helr estimated useful lives of 1 to 5 ¥ear. The estimated useful life
and amortieation methog are reviewed at the end of each Meporting period, with the effect of Ay Changes in estimate being sccounted fior o a Prospective basss,
Intangibie assets with indefinite usedul lives that are scquired separalely are carried at cost less BLCumutated imparment lossas, if any,

) direct the use of the identified asest
The Company determines the lease term g ths non-cancellable period of a lease, tngether with periods covered By an aption to extend tha lease, whare the

Borrowing Costs

Bormowing costs directly attributatile (o the Acauisition, construction of Production of an assat that recessanily bakes a substantial period of time to gat ey for
its itended use or saje are capitaticed a8 part of the oot of the respacte asset,

Al other besrawing costs ane recognised i the Statement of Brofit and Loss using effective interact rata;

Borrowing tusts consist of mterest and other costs that an EMULY INCurs in fonnecton with the boreewing of funds, Borrewng eost aiso includes exchange
differences o the axtent regarged a5 an adjustment o the borrowing costs,
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{e)

i

(a)

(h}

Employee benefits

(i} Short-term employee benafity

Short-Lenm employes hoanefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are enpensed as the related service 5 provided. & Bability is recognised for
theamwﬂexpactedmbenaid, lr:hecmnpamhasaprmlegmurmmm obfigation to paymmuﬂ-asamsmtufmmwimprmﬂeﬁhvﬂm
employes, and the amount of oidigation can be estimated refighly.

(i} Defined contribution plans

A defined contribugion plan is 5 post-emnployment benedit plan under Wwhich an entity pays fixed contnbutions o a separate entity and will have na tegal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts, The Company makes specified monthy Contribions towards Government admiréstered  providant Fundg.
Qbligations for contributions tg defined contribution plan is recognised &5 an employes benefit Fxpense in profit or loss in the periods during which the selated
SEMVICES are rendered amployees,

Pregiaid contribitions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or & redisction in Future: paynsents is availablo,
(iil} Defined benefit Mans

i calculated by estimating the amount of fture benefit that emplovess have £amned in the current and prioe periods, discounting that amount and deducting the
Fair valie of any plan assets,

gain’) or the gain or loss on curtatiment is recngnised immadiately in profit or loss, The Company recognises gaine and koages on Lhe settlement af a oefined
Benefit plan when the sottiement CRCLTS,

(iv) Other long-term employee benefits

The Companny's net obligation in respect of fong-term employee benefits other than post-employment Lenefits is the amount of future benefit that employess
have eamed in retum for their SErvice in the current and prior periods; that  benedi| is discounted te determing e present. value. The obligation s measured an
the: basis of an annual Independent actuarial valuation using the projectad unit credit method, Remeasuraments G or ksses are recognisad in proft or loss in
the penod in which ey arise,

Ind AS 115 "Bevenue from Contiacts with Customers estabiishes 3 five-step model to account FOF reverse arising from Contracts with customers. Under Tnd AS
LLS, revenue Is recogriised at an amoet that refleces L é

Rendering of services
Feveriue is recognised upen transfer of control of promised SBIVICES Bo CUStOmers in an amount that reflects the consideratior the Company expsct to receive in
exchange for those services,

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in fareign clrrencies are transtted into the functional iwrency of the Company at the exchange rabes at the dates of the transactions,
Monetary assets and liahilitiss denominated i foreign CUITENCIEs are franslated into the functional currency. at the Exchange rate at the réparting date. Mon-

The Bmosnt recogrized as a Provision Is the best estimate of the considération required to sertle the present ohisgation at reDorting date, taking inte account e
figks and uneertainties surrounding the obligation,

When some or all of the economic berefits required to settie a LIOVISiON are expected to be recovered from a third party, the: recenvabis I5 Fecognized as an gsset
I 8 is virbually certain that reimbursement will ha recedved and the amount of the TeCeivatie can be measured reliabily.

A provision fov onermus contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of termiinating the Contract and the. expected net cos of
continuing with the contract,

Past events and whose existence will anly. be canfirmed by the OQCCUMTENCE oF non-occurrence of one
& SEEEE 1L 15 nof probable that an outfiow of Sconamic benefits will be required, or the amount

([

| "-—_l,

A
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@l

(k)

Inceme tax comprises curtent and deferrad tax, It je recoamised in profit or foss eucept to the extent that it relates to 2 business combination or to an ibem
recogmised directly in equity or in other Cornprehensive 3

(i} Current tax

Deferred income Lax assets are recogized fo the extend it is probable that faxabhe Profit will be available against which thee deductible temporary differences ang
the carry forward of wnised tax cradits and unused tax lasses can e utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilitics are recognized for all taxable temparary differencas,

The: carrying amaunt of deferred Income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it & ne longer probable that suffecient
taxable profit will be sailatie to sliow &l or part of the deferred income fax asset to be ytikzed,

The Company offscts deferred income tax assets and liabilites, where it has legally enforceatiée right to offset curran: toe assets against current tag liabifities,
and they relate to taves fevied by the same tavation authorily on either the same tawable entity, o o0 different Laxakie ENUEES where there s an intention o
seftle the current tax liabilities ang assels on a net basis or their tay assets and hiabiities wilt be reafized simultaneoushy.

Earnings per share (Eps)

Financial instruments
(i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables ame Initialy recognised when they are onginated. All other financial assets: and financial fabilities are intially recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisaons of the instrumend.

A financial asset or financis Nability is initially measured at fair walie phus, for-an item mst 34 fair value LhPOLaN Brotit and loss (FUTPL), transsction costs that are
directly attributable Lo s ALGUISITON Or S50,

(i} Classification and subsequent measurement
Fenancial assets;

On initial recognition, a firancial a=set is classifiod as measured a1
amortised cost;

at fair value through other Comprebensive income; or

at fair value theough profit or Iss

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent fo their initia recognition, except i and in' the Pennd the Company changes its busirass moded for managing
finamncial assels,

A firancial asset is measured at amortised cost if i meets both of the Following conditions and is not desianated as at FVTPL - The seset it fiald within a busitiess
model whose abijective is ol assets to eolfect contractual cash flaws; and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o rash

A tebd investment is measured at FVOCT if it meats both of the foflowing conditions and s not designated as ot FUTPL: the asset is Feld within 3 business modal
whiose objective s achieved By bt collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and the Company does nat have any financisl assets within this
categary.

O initial recogmition of an equity ivestment that is nol fedtd for trading, the Company has elected to Present sutsequent. changes iy the irvestment's fair value
i OCT {designated as Fyoey — BOuUitY ivestment), This election g e o an investment. By- imvestment basis. The Comparny does nol have w financial
assets within this categary,

All financial agsets not classifisg 4= measred at amortised cost or FWOCT as deccribed above are Measired at FyTRL The Company does not hawe any fitancial
assets within this category.

Financial assets 3t FUTPL - These Assets are subsequently measured. at fair value. Nt gaws and fosses, Including any interest or dividend inceme, are recognised
I profit or loss,




WAISL Limited (EIH:I.I‘?‘JJM!MEPLWEIZ?Z]
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

n

Dbt investments at PG - Thess assets arp subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income under the effective intares| method, foreign exchange geins
and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Qther net gairs and kesses are recogrigad in OCHL On Merecognition, gaing and losses accumulated in
QLT are reclasssfied to profit or logs,

Equity imvestmients at FYOCT - These assets are sulbsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are recognised 3s income in profit or loss unless the dividend
clisrly reprasents 4 frecavery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and Inszes are recognised in OC] and are net reclagsified to profit or doess,

Financial liabilities: Classification, subisequent easrement and gains and losses

Finencial lisbilities sme Classafied as measured at amortesed cost or FUTFL. & financial labiity is clacsified & FYTPL if it e classifier &5 held- for- trading, or i js &
derfvative or # is desionated as such on mitlal recognition. Financial kabilies Al FYTPL are measured at fir vaiie and net gains and losses, including any interest
EXpense, are recognised i profit or koss, Other financial liabiities are subsequentfy measurad at amocticed cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and forglan exchange gams and losses are recognised In Drofit or loss. Any gain or loss on derscogretion is alen recagnised in profit or Joss. The
Company does not hawe amy fisancial kabities under the category of FVTPL,

() De-recognition

The Company devecognises a firancizl assel when e COntractusl rights ta the cash flows: from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the Fights: g receive the
conteactual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially afl of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial ssset are travsferrad O in which the
Company nesther transfers nior retains substantially all of the ks ared rewards of ownership and does not retain contrl Of the finanicial asses.

If the Company enters inta transactions whereby it transfers assebs recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantiaily all of the risks and
rewards of the transfareed assets, the transferred assels are not derecognised.

The Company derecignises a financi liability when its contractyal ohligations ara discharged or carselled, or expirg,

The Company also derecognises a financial liabifity wher its terms are mocdified and the cash flows unger the modified terms are subsstantially different. In this

Case. 2 new financial liability based on (he modified terms IS recognised at fair value. The difference betweesn e Carmying amount of the firtancial fatulity
extinguished and the new finangial latlity with modified terms is recognised in profit or foss,

(i) Offsetting

Impairment
(1) Impairmant of financial instruments

The Carnpany recognises lsss allowances for expected credit loss o0 financial assers measired a¢ amortised cost,

The Compary measures inas Mflgwances al an amount equal to fifetime ected credit losses, excapt for the following, which are mieasured 512 month
expected credit osses:

Bank balances for which credit risk (Le. the rsk af default Qoeurning sver the expected e of the financial instrument) fias not increased significantly since initia|
rECOQNition,

The: Company uses expected credit ioss model to assess the impairTent. loss on trade receivables, The Company uses 3 Prwision matrix to compute the expected
credit loss sliowance for trade receivables, The provision matris takes nto ancount historical experience with Custoimers, Based on the past esperience, Lhe
management considers that i addition to the expected credit loss based on a provision matriv, the Company identifies oid dues: pending with custormers an
ACCOUNE of oNgoing dispistes and adequately recognises koss allowance against such disputed duss. Refer note 36

The Company's non-finangial assets, other than deferred tax Assels, are reviewed at each FEpOMING date to determine whether there is any indication of
Irngssirment, If any such indication exists, then the aceatc recoverabie amount 5 estimated,

For impairment Lesting, assets that do net generate independant cash Inflows sre grouped tagether intn Cash-generating uniks {CGUs). Each CGU represents the
smallest group of assets tha Generates cash inflows that are largely indeperchent of the cash inflows of other assets or CoLs,

estimated fiture cash flows, drscounted to they Presend value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current maskat ausessments of the tme value of money
and the rses specific to the CoL {ar the dngor),

AR impairment 1oss is recognised if the CArying amount of an asset or CGU exceads its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses e recognised in the
Statement of Frofit and | ges.

An impairment loss i respect of assets other than qaadwill for which HMpETent (055 has been Fecognised in peior periods, the CUmpany reviews at each
reporting dale whethier there ic any indication that the loss has decreased or no bnger exists. An IMpAIFMEnt 1055 15 reversed if thars hae been a charge in the
estimates used fo determine the recoverabile amount. Such a reversal is made only ta the extent that the asset's carrying amount does naot excesd the carrying
arount Bt wondd have bean determined, not of depreciation OF amartisation, if ng impairment koss had bewn recognised,
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2.3

{m} Cash and cash equivalents

{n}

(@}

()

Cash and cash equivalents Compeise cash batance on hand, badance with baeds and ighty Bguid investrments Wit maturity perlod of three manths o less from
the date of irvestment,

Recognition of interest income or expense
Interest income or experse 15 recognised using the effective interest methugd.

The ‘effective interest rate” is the rate thal exactly discounts estimated future cash payrients or receipts through the expecten ffe of the financial instrument to:
the gross carnying amount of the: financial ssset: or the amortised cost of the financial liatility,

Statement of Cash flows

Ind A% 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
Free amendment preseribies disclasime of material Accounting policies instead of sgnificant accounting policies, The Company dees maot xpect the amendment to
Fave any significant impact in it financial statements

Ind A5 8 — Acounting Pobiies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced & definition of ‘am:mung estimates” and mcluded amendments ta Ind A4S 2 1o el entities. distinguish chiarges in accounting
polices from changes in accounting estimates, The Company does not expact the amendrment to have any significant impact in its financial shatemients

Ind A5 12 - Income Faxes

o dr‘"
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3. Property, piant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

4.

mwmgdm [ant and equigrient are as folows:
Particulars

Furniture and fixtures Computers Office
g e —  SOuiment
Gross carrying valee as at 1 April 2022 23.32 25,416.03 -
Additions dusing the year 53.19 IL571 48 B3,80

Dresestions: dhuring the ¥EAT
Em:arm.ptﬂneas at 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation as gt 1 April 20232
Depreciation dunng the year

Accumulated deprecistion on deleteins durig e year
Accumulabed depreciation a8 at 31 March 2023

Carrying value as at 31 March 0232

Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2021
Adostions during the year

Deletians during bhe vear
&mmum-ntummu

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2021
Depreciation during the year

Accumudated depracistion on defetions dimng the vear
Accumulated depraciation a5 at 31 March 20232

Carrying valse as at 31 March 2022

Total

25,439,355
3168547

1523487
4.358.90

44.47 36,455.40 3614 36,535.10
32,14 H8.212.68 T 18,2315 87
0.18 735 6390 7266, 5

23.33 2541603 8385 3550381
2311 1521490 S 15,736.01
256,81

0,06 995,01 1724

0.15 9,206.12 51,72 9,267.99
Amount in CWIP for a af
As al 31 March 2023 Less Than 1 year 1-2 years 23 painry Mare than 3 Total
f5 in | L0965 E 3,095 64
Lemporanly dispended | : = —
F Amount in CWIF for a period of
1 March 202
Ayt Maz Less Than 1 year 1-2 years -3 years Mere than 3 Total
in 13,928.43 13,978.43
" arily susperyied : ] -
Intangible asscis
Thee changes in the: g valie of intangibies are ag Feallcrws;
Particulars Com| r 1] Total
Gross carrying walue as st 1 April 2023 %815 14 4,875 14
Adgitions duiring the yoar 59433 594,33
Deletiones during the pear i %
Griss carrying value as at 31 March 3033 __5419.47 5419.47
Accumulated amartization as at 1 April 2022 L2565 1,296,591
Amortization 457.30 85130
Accumidated aenortistion on dhedabions = R
Accumulated amortization as at 31 March 023 4,254, 31 3,354 31
Carrying value as at 31 March 2023 3,165.26 3,165,286
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2023 L5432 L.754.32
Additions dinng the yoar 3,0m0.82 3,082
Defetions during the vear = .
Gross chrying value as at 31 Mareh 2022 4 E!i:l_i_ EXFIRT)
Accumulated amortization as at 1 April 2021 FLx g 5303
Adrirtization 543,68 54368
ACCummulaten amortization on deletions ¥ :
Accumulated amortization as gt 31 March 2022 1.196.81 1,296,591
Carrying value as at 31 March 2023 3.518.23 3.528.23
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3. Unbilled revenue and recoveries for service rendered

Current
Unbilled revenue * 1,675.65 1,159,858
1,675. 1!1&33
* Classified as financial asset as right to consideration js unconditional upon passage of time.
5A Loans
As at As at
Noen-current
Inter-corporate Deposits 671,25 1,379.31
ﬁ?l.2§ Eséﬂ'-gi
Current
Inter-corporate Deposits 1,006.88 620,69
i 1,006.88 —_ 620.69
Intercorporate Deposit {ICD} had been made for the purposes of wifi activities at 1G] Airport, As per terms and condition of the
agreement, the door to door tenure is &0 months, repayment will commence from Sep 2022 and ending on 30 November 2024,
It carries an interest rate 10.75% pa,
5B Other financial assets
As at As at
Current
Unsecured - Considered good
Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits 106.34 42.43
Security Depaosits 107 .66 B.72
Interest accrued on Inter-corporate Deposits - 486,56
214,00 _538.01_
6. Income tax assets
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
MNon-current
Income tax assets {net of Provision for tax) - 812.87
- 81 I.E?
Current
Inceme tax assets (net of provision for tax) . 3.95 1,244.14
395 _1,244.14
7. Deferred tax assets/ liabilities (net)
As at As at
Deferred tax assets | net) - 453.52
Deferred tax liabilities {net) 2,516.44 -
%5;5.44 453.22
Details therecf: As at As at
Deferred tax assets f{liabilities)
Written down value of fixed assots (2.552.1%)
Provision for emplayvee benefits 16.10
Provision for doubtfy| receivables L3552
Others (24.38)

Deferred tax assets /(liabilities) (net)

As at As at
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8. Trade receivablas
As at Ag at
Unsecured —— 31 March 2023 31 March 2032
Trade recehvables
- Considered good 780239 1327
- Considered doubtful o 17450 179.64
L276.98 = L520.91
Less; Loss alowance For doubtfal recetvables {174.50) (179.64)
7,802,359 —L381.37
The Company's exposure b credt risk and lass allpwances related to trade receivables s disclosed in note 36.
9. Cash and eash equivalents *
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balances with banks
» 0N Curment accoants o83 A56.26
- an deposits accounits
(8] Fixed depesits with less thar 3 manth maturey 505605 6,325.57
£.746.98 8,081,83
%A Bank balance other than Mota 9
As at As at
341 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balances with banks
- U ORPOSHS Acoounts
(8 Fleed deposits with more than 3 month maturity 7507 52 4,504 .94
Fi
OF the above, the balance that mest the definition of Cash and Cash equivalents as per Ind AS 7 - Staternent of Cash Flow % 746, 6,681.83
* Borrawings are secured by a first ewclusie charge on the escrow acoount and oiher reserves and bank acoounts of the Company wherever maintainad and all menies ying to
the credit of sald accounts (Refer note 13).
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities during the Year ended 31 March 2023
|_ Particulars As at] Cash flow during the year | As at
3 March, 200 e as Payment Net Cash Flow Adjustments 31 March, 2023
| = (Fimance Cost) :
Term Loans {mcluding current maturities of 30,039,593 19, BE4. 95 5A50.00 14,834,595 (57.44) A4, 217 44
lang-term debt)
Recondiliation of liabilities arising from financing activities during the Year ended 31 March 022
Particulars As at Cash flow during the year As at
31 March, 2021 1o oads Payment Net Cash Flow Adjustments #1 Naech, 2022
! ' (Finance Cost)
Term Loans (including cutrent maturities of 13,411.66 H0,571.10 4,054.17 16,516.93 11834 0030.93
long-tesm debt)
10.  Other assets

Man-current assets

Gratuity Fund with LIC 23.92 23,92
Current assets As at As at
Frepaid expenses B38.60 534,96
Balance with statutory authorsties 4,076,958 3,923.64
Advances o Employees 5.2 .71
Advanoes o vendors 10243 542,16
Receivabie under present ard past agreaments (net of payabies) X 2,576.45 108.43
60374 _ 513694

Az at

—mw
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11,

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4,

11.5.

Equity share capital

Authorised share capital
L05,00.000 {31 March 2072 - 1,05,00,000) equity shares of s, 10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
S0,00,000 {31 March 2027 - 50,00,000) equity shares of Rs, 10 each

Recancilistion of shares eutstanding at the beginning and at the end of reparting pericd

At the beginning of the reporting year

Changes in Equity Share Capial due to prior perisd errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in Equity Share capitai during the year

At the end of the reporting year

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares:

As at

500,00 SO0

As at As at

5,000,000 5,000,000

¥ s!uun,a;n smu,ﬂ;:'o
5,600,000 5,000,000

The Company has a single class of ety shaves having & par valse o Rs5. 16 per shars, Accordingly, all equity sharas rienk agually with regard o dividends and share in the
Company’s residual assets, The BOUILY shares are eatitled to recgive dividend a5 declared from time fo time. Each bolder of an Squity shave I5 entithed to one vobe per share,
On winding ug of the Company. the holders of cquily shares will be antitled to rerpiva the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of &l preferential

Equity shares held by the holding campany, their subsidiaries and associates (Refer note 27)

Utthishta Vieat Fund
(Refer note 1)

Particulars of sharehalders halding more than 5 Percent shares in the Company
[Hefer note 1)

31 March 2023 11
Number of 2% shares held Number of shares % shares held
_shares

As at
— mm_—w
Mumber of shares  Mumber of shares

5,000,000
5,500,000

Asg at

5,000,000

200000

As at As at

Lthistta Wirat Find 5,000,000 100% 5. 003, 000 100%
Dizsclogure of Shareholding of Promoters
mmmmm& —
L £ Shares held by Promoters
Promaoter Nama Change As at As at
Wf:e“ 31 March 2023 31 March 20272
year Number of 9% shares hold Mumber of shares % shares heid
Utthishta Virat Fund 0%, 000,000 1005, 5,000,000 100%
Mﬂﬂﬂfmm:»ﬁmm
i Shares held by promoters 4
Promoter Name Change As at Asat
“‘;‘? 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
~ yer Numberof sh N % shares held
Uttheshta Virat Funig 1008 5 D00, 1005 he
Antariksh Softtech Private Limited -101%, : : 5,000,000 100%
P

oo ¥
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iz

13,

Dther equity As at As at
— 1 March 2023 = 31 March 2027

Reserve and surphss [Refer note (i) balow] 16,744.56 5.142.37

Other comprehensive income [Refier note (il below] 1012 .30

16,754.68 5,138.67

{i1 Reserve and surplus

Retained earnings

Balance at the begmning of the vear 514237 3.602.85

Add: Profit attribastable to the owners of the Company 11,602.19 1,539.52

Balance at the end of the year 16,744.56 5,142.37

(i} Other comprehensive Income

Batance at the beginning of the year 630 (44.84)

Actuarial gain/{loss) on defined benefit plan for the year 3.82 51.14

Balance at the end of the year 1n.1g 6.30

Borrowings As at As at
— M March3023 31 March 2022

Non-current

Term loan

(Secured) (Refer note below)

Term koan from Bank 10,721 61 24 B94.10

Working capital Term ioan (WCTL) under ECLGC from Bank 4,495,683 5, 145,83

Less. Current matursties of long term debt and WCTL (13, 18474 (5,204.73)

Totat 31,032.70

Current As at Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Short term borrowings

(Secured] (refer note below)

Current maturities of long term debt and WCTL 13,184.74 5.204.73

Total 1318474 520473

Notes:

1. The Company has been sanctioned (a) Term Loan of Rs, 2,700 Lakhs (TL-1) and Rs. 12,000 Lakhs
ECLGC scheme, (c) B, 2,600 Lakhs (TL-4) under ECLGE, (d) Rs 21,000 Lakhs {TL 5},

(TL &) and {h) Rs. 3,000 Lakhs {TL 9) under WETL.

{TL-2} in 2019-20 (b) Rs. 2,600 Lakhs (TL-3) in 2020-21 under
{2) Rs. 4800 Lakhs (TL 6), () Rs. 19,600 Lakhs (TL 7], (g) BS. 5.600 Lakhs

LA was fully repaid on 30 April 2020. TL-2 i repayable In 36 structured manthly equal instaments by 30 November 2023, T~ 3 1= repayable in 48 structursd
monthiy equal instalments by 7 Feb 2026, TL- 4 &5 repayable in 48 strochured manthly equal instalments by 1 June 2027, TL- 5 is repayable in 72 structured manthly
equal Instalments by 28 Dec 2028, TL- 6 s repavabile in 60 structured monthly equal instabments by 10 March 2028, TL- 7 = repayable in 63 struchered monthily
equal instalments by 30 Sep 2028. TL- & is repayabie in 60 stroctured rvanthly equal instalments by 30 Mov 2028, TL-9 is repayabie in 24 structured monthly egual
instalments by 28 Feb 2025. The prosent interest rake is ranging from 8.55% to 9.5% per annum for the above term loans

2, The borrowings (Term Loan) are secured by:

(i} & fust exclusive charge on the enfire cash fows, reconabiles {including, the user receivables, {including premium and termination payments recevables), other
raceivables, book debts and revenues of the Company, of whalsoever natire and wherever arising, both present and futuee;

{1} & first exclusive charge /mortgage/assignment, as the case may be, of - {a) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoevar of the
Company in the project documents all as amended, varied or supplemented from bme to time; (B) subject to applicable law, all the rights, title, interest, benefits,
claims and demands whatsoever of the Company in the clearances. and 1o} all the rights, title, interest, berefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Company i
any letter of credit, guarantee, performance bend, corporate guarantee, bank guarantee provided by any party to the project documenits; {d] all the right, title,
interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Cormpany under all insurance contracts and iNsurance proceeds:

{ifi} a first exclusive charge on the escrow account and other resenves & Dark accounts of the Company wherever maintained and all manices bying to the credit of
said dccounts,

2. In additien to seourity menticned under (2, TL 5 & TL 9 is secured by hypothecation of fixed assets under the Project, both presant and future for Hyderabad
Location,

4. The company has also been sanctioned an ameunt of ks, 5120.00 Lakis (31 March 2022 : 4370.00 Lakhs) as non-fund based facility and an amount of Rs,
5120.00 Lekhs (31 March 2022 : 4370.00 Lakhs) outstanding as on date,
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14,

i5.

16.

164

17.

18.

Other financial liabilities

Current
Interest aceried but nat due on kan
Depasits

Payable towards Broperty, plant and equipment
Others

Provisions

Nonr-current
Frowizion for amployee benefits
Gratuity

Provisions

Current
FPrawision for emploves benefits
Gratuity

Income Tax Liabilities [Net)
Current
Provision for Income Tax [net)

Trade payables

Total sutstanding dues of micro eHeronses and small enterprisecs

Tatal cutstanding dues of Credilors ather than micro enterprises and small enterprizes

# Based on the infarmation presently available with the Managen
EMHSTOnses covered under the "Micte, Small and Medium Enterprises Develapment Ach, 2006

e, there are no duss sutstan

As at As at

141.28 0043
1,353.15 1,086.75
6,470.50 9,707.12
19.78 26.18
296471 1051046
As at As at
— 31 March 2023 — 31 March 2022
(3,97 35.04
03,57 —352
Az at A% at
265
- — 265
As at As at
- 183,23 .
o 183.23 2
As at As at
16281 5846
4,611 34 366101

ding except mentioned In Fnancial statement to micro and small
The auditors have refied Upin the same,

Note: Credit periad varies as per the contractual terms of various suppliers, vendors, The Company has appropriate policy in place to ensure that af dues are paid

withén the credit termg agreed with the parties.
Other liabilitias

Current
Statutory dues

As at As at

1,478.66 265,03

147886 26503
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19,

21

2z,

15,

Revenue from operations

Rendering of services

. Other income

Interest income an bank deposits

Interest income an Intier- “orporate deposits

Provision for doybtfyl receivables no longer required, written back
Interest income on ineome tax refund

Cost of services received

Cuost of services received
Software licenses purchased*

* Software licenses fees Paid are for 2 period of one ¥ear or less and are amortised
operating information and communication technology infrastructure and Applicatons at irports.

Employee benefits expenses

Salarles, wages and Bomus

Contract salary

Cantribution to provident and other funds [Refer nate 35 {al]
Gratuily expense [Refer nete 7% =]

Staff welfare expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3]
Amertisation of intangitle assate (Refer nate 4)

Finance costs

Interest expense for financial latilities not Classified at FVTRL
Interest on term loan
Finance cost

Other expenses

Revenue Share {Refer note ar iy
Travelling and UOTEYAnCE

Rent (Refer note 33)

Insurance

Legal and professional charges (Refer note 32.a)

Communication exXpenses

Provision for doubtful receivables (net)

Contribution to political parties through an electoral brust! Donation
Exchange differences {net}

Printing and Stationery

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (C58) (Refer note 32.b)
Tendering Expenses ¥R
Miscelianeous expenses 5 ;'\‘h}__‘?:_

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 20232
3911495 1524399
39.114.95 15,243.49
For the year ended For the year endad
31 March 2023 21 March 20237
357 261.63
203.76 Z15.00
5108 =
327 88 =
1,082.46 476.63
Far the yaar anded For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 20232
6.905.02 533246
ARE 43 256.87
7,793.45 5,589.33

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
279465 LB10.g2
65.51 19.05
148 44 92.00
35.23 277
107,36 44.93
3,101.19 1,994.51
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 20232
4,358.90 99681
95730 543 64
5,316.20 1,540.49
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
3,513:37 1,248 64
84,29 29.88
3,597.66 1,278,52
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
25631.15 1,062.75
104.75 44.00
249.36 135.28
134.36 10399
1,095.56 E38.07
34.35 11.54
- 7253
z 210,00
8065 9.93
4,90 22.70
3805 2956
2881 10.96
385.45 129.24
== 4,847.39
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26  Income tax

aj Income tax recognised in profit or loss For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax
= In respect of current period 970.65 -
- In respect of prior years - -
970.65 -
Deferred tax
- In respect of current year 2,968 BH 1,292 20
- In respect of prigr years - -
2,968.68 1,292.20
Total income tax expense recognized in current period = 3,939.33 1,292.20
b) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax
Arising on income and EXpenses recognised in other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loge: {1.28) (17.20)
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset)
128) (17707
c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Frofit befare tax 15,541.52 2.831.72
Income Tax expense calculated at 25,1704 (2021-22: 25.17%) 191180 712.74
Reversal of Deferred tax of earlier years (453.52) -
Others 481.05 570,45
Income tax expense recognised in profit or lgss 3,939.33 1,292.20
d) The tax rate used for both the year ended 31 March 2023 & 31 March 2022 is the corporate tax rate of 25.179% payable by
corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law,
27, Related party transactions
{i) List of related parties and relationships;
Holding company where controf exists (Refer note 1);
Utthishta Virat Eund {Holding Company w.e.f. 25 June 2021)
Antariksh Softtech Private Limited (Holding company till 24 June 2021)
(i) Name of the other related parties with whom transaction

: ’ For the year ended | For the year ended
Transactions during the period 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
[Enderiﬂq of services (refer note 29) 45,65 12.73
{h) Outstanding balances as at the end of the year
Outstanding balances as at the end of the year = As at As at
Trade Receivable 23.29 1.86

Footnotes:
- Sales / provision of Services ko and purehase [ provision of services from related parties are made on

those that prevail in arm's length ’ 5,
The above list of related parties /ttionship and transactions are as certified by
date of the relation exists, (o] -

i

I
|I»

terms equivalent o, | |, .
mSE‘:IU EKJE!}_.?_:-". i

Ff "
the management ang being reporteg il th

=

[ XA
"l.':, % :' _’,.-'" v/

| T
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2B. In December 2000, the Company had entered inm g Transaction Agreement with Infrastructure Development Finance Company Limited (IDFC). Simultaneously, the
Company, DIAL, I6FC ang Wipro Limited entered intg a Consent and Acknowledgement Agreement [ “Consent Agreement”) to protect/provide Lertain rights to IDFC
under the Transacton Agreement, As per the Transaction Agreement, the Comparny securitized the finance lease receivahips from DIAL and received 3 sum of fs.
5,00,00.00 Lakhs from IDFC The Company has entered inta 3 Master Service Agresment ("MSA"} with DIAL in Detoher 2009 to provide hardware, software, operation
and maintenance servicee till 31 July 2020, Pursuant to the MSA, the Company had leaseq 2558ts Aggregating ta Rs, 499, 7,82 Lakhs {Eill December 2007) to DIAL, The
Company had determined that this lpase arrangement quaiified as finance iease and accordingly recorded finance lease Fecelables. Further, based an the terms of
MSA, the Transaction Agreemment, the Consent Agreement and related amendments to these dgreements, the Company de-recognized the finance lgage receivables
from DIAL and borrowings from 1DFC #ggregating to Rs. 4999 78,82 Lakhs (till Becember 2017) in accordance with Ind AS 108 ‘Financial Instruments’, As per
understanding with DIAL, these BsselE dre continued to be used by the Company,

20.1 As per Master Service Agreement (MSA) a5 amended executed by the Company with Defni International Airport Limited (DIALY, CUTE Fecovery refers to the amaunt
recelved / receivable from DIAL an account of trade receivable from Airlines (relating to CUTE senvice charges) outstanding for a period exoteding the perod defined
within MSA. Similarly CUTE reoveny pavable to DIAL refers to amaunt 1o be refunded to DIAL of account of subseguent recoveries from the Airines from CUTE SErvices,

29.2 In terms of Concession Agreement ['CAT) with Delhi International Airport Limited (DIAL) and GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL), the company has
accaunted revenue share payahley paid during the year.

30. Capital and other commitments
As at As at
(a) Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for #,734.38 4,248.50
{b) Other commitment
Estimated amount of eommitment made under Operation and Maintenance Agreements 9.326.87 10,343.13
31.a Contingent lizbilities
As at As at
Clairms against the Company not ackrowiledged as debts:
- Interest demand from service tax authorities 66.77 55,77
During the vear 2015-16, the Company had received a demand order for interest of Rs 66.77 Lakhs comiiuted on availment of 100% cenvat credic on capital goods in
the first vear of purchase iself during the financial years 2010 - 2011 and 2011 - 2013, The service tax department had contenced that the Company should have
Availed cenvat cradit of 50% in the first year and balance 0% in the second year of Purchiase/ transfer of capitai assets from Delhi Intermational Adrport Limited, The
Company had filed an appeal against the said order and befieves that the QULCOMmE In respect of the matter will e i favour of the Company and accordingly na
Rrovision has been considered in this regard. The Company do not Expect any ultimate cash outflow on this account

31.b Financial Guarantess
As 4 part of conditions to the agreements, the Company has provided performance bank guarantees amounting to R, 5,120.00 Lakhs (31 March 2022 : rs, 4, 370.00
Lakhs). There is no conditions Prevaling on the year end date, henge ot considered as a contingent liabitity,

3ra Payment to Statutory Auditors (included in legal and professional charges) *
For the year ended  For the year ended
___31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory audit fee 8.00 B.00
Other audit fees 3.00 -
* doss not include Goods and Service Tax
32.b Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
) Prescribed CSR expenditure 45 per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 38.05 29.56
b} Amount spent during the vear # 3805 29,56
C] Amount Lnspent during the vear " t
# Amount paid for

- Acquisition/ construction of assets & %
- other purpases {contribution to health care, education and atfrer community development projects) 38.05 29.56

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Office premise e Xy X 1\ 249.36 135.28

135,28
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F4. Disclosures required under Seetion 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Fou the year anded For the year endeq
Pirtclinn 31 March 2023 31 March 2027
{1 Principal amaunt remaining unpat b any suppier 25 at the end of the regicrting penod 16281 544

34b Trade Payable ageing Scheduke

Particulars ﬂumwmmmmmanﬂmm
T Lessthan 1year | A-2 years 23 yaars More than 3 years Toktal
A% at 31 March 2023 -
MEME* 162,51 . - - 162,81
Dthes 156793 11.57 - : 1.574.50
Dipuited Duss- MGME® £ - 2 &
Cisouted D Cthers E = - .
1,735.74 11.57 - - 1,737.31
ACcrued expenses - = L0684 |
328867 23.14 - . 377415
As at 31 March 2022 -
MGME 5896 . - 58,46
Dtfers 2,855.81 = - 1 R55.81
Disgusted Dies- MEME* : = £
Disputed Dues: (thars - - i =]
2,914,237 = - 291437
ACtried eanenses -
- = - 3,71

MSME a5 per Micro, Smal and Maulmfmmﬂrmhmntm. 2006
35, Empkiyee benefits
ta) Defined contribution plans

(b}  Defined banefit plans
(i} General description -WWWHgmﬂmmu Every

A m | the xared Inberent rabe w THIRent e planned liabdites
The present vale of the Gefired benefit plan kabilfy & caloalabed by mmtmmmhummﬁm
Amphoyinent,

Ranicipants both dieing and aler the Anvincroase in the ife axpectancy of the planned partiipants will increase the
pEarimed Rabdities.
Salary risk Thmumﬁmed:ﬁrmm-eﬂtpmIubﬁukmmhyMemmmtmmﬂmmmmm.m

such an increass in safany of the plansied partCipants wil increase the planmeg liathittivs,

(&} 1hem~u1ngubmmlmhmmprrre:mmmmrmimmhﬁaﬁmmdhmkmummandmemm;ammmmwmm

Plan assets at the vear and, at fair value

31 March 2023 31 March 2032
Present value of Dol chdigation 3t vear andes (6397 (37.89)

Flan psses at the year enced, af Tair valie

Met (labsiity ) recagrined in the basance shest 163.97] (37,89
Hat employes benafit expense (recognized in Employee Cost)
For thir year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current Sarvce Cast 35S T
el Inberest Cost 2,56 530
Expacted returm on plan asset (5307 (068
29.51 AT72
Amount recognised in Other Comprahensive Tnooma
For the year ended Far the year ended
—FlMarchjo3s
Actuarial (gain )/ foss on abliyations {5.56} (6503
Balance sheet
As at Ag at
Defined bonefit obdgation 1h14T [37.89)
Filr value of plan assers = i
Pian asset / (lability) 82971 _ (37.83]

Changes in the present valus of th defined benafit obligation are as foblows:

S = Asat As at
5 \c:-_‘r;}\f L f%x 7.8 751
256 L
g i) 322 Bn
g LW (317 5
}IL {5.56) {69,035
7 Ry
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(i)

{v)

36.

The sgnificant Atuanal assumptions were as Tollows:

As at As at

———-MM______M

Discount rate (pah F50%: B.75%:
Fusture salary increase (p.a.) A0 8,00
Retrement age &l years Gl years
Mortality tatie LALM 204214 LALM 2002 14
Withdrawal rte (pus) 15% 154
Weighted! average disation of dofied benefit chlgation 18 years 18 yoars

infiation, senirity, promotion and other relevant factivs such ag SUpbly ani demand factars i the empyment market, The discount rate e baged the
prevailing market Msufﬁuummﬂuﬂsasalmbalaﬁw sheat date for the estimated ferm of the ohiligations, The: cusrency angd the: ferm of the gosamement bands 15 consistent
wiligation

The sensitivity of the defined benofi obdsgation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is as Faflows:

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate (1% incresse) 160.45) {35.88)
Discount rate (1% decrease) 67.88 A0.11
Future salary growth (1% Increase} G762 40.07

Future salasy growth (19 derrease) (60.47) (35.59)

Attrition movemsnt (1% increasa) [61.86) [35.54)
Atrithon movement (1% decrease) 66,13 390

The: abidve: sensitivity analyses are based on a thange in an assumption while: holding all other assumptions ciswstant, In practice, this is Unlikely to ocour, and changis
in some of the assumplions may be correlatad, When calowlating the sensitivity of the defined benafit abdsgation to significant sctuarial Assumptions, the same methad
(present value of the defined benefit obligation catculated with the projected unil credét method at the end of the reporting periad) has bees applied as when
calcufating the defined benefit Hability recognised in the balance shaet,

The methods and types of assumptions used in Prepating the sensitivity analysis did not change comgpared b the prioe periad,

Financial instrument - Fair value and risk management

Capital Management

The Company's abjectives when Iafagng cageal are o
- safeguard their atlity fo continge a5 & going concern, o that they can continue b provide returms foe shareholders and benedits for other stakeholders, and

- maintain #n optamal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,
The capital structure of the Lompany consists of net debt (Borrowings offset by Cash and Bank batances) and total equaity of the Company,
I order to achieve this overall obfective, the Company's Capital managemant, amangst ather thirgs, sims to ensere that it meels finantal covenants attackied to the

Inkerest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital shructure requirements, Breaches i meeting the financial covenants would parmit the biank to immediately call
loans aid borrowirigs. There have Been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing kans and borrowing in the currant year,

The Company's reviews the cAptal structre on & regular basis, Ae part of this review, the Company onsiers thar cost of capital, risks assoclated with each class of
CApita reduirenents and maintenanes of adequate liguidity,

Categorias of financial instruments

As at As at
i1 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables {net) 7.802.30 1,341.27
Cash and cash equivalents 6,746,598 6,681.83
Cither financial assets 11,475.30 820233
26,024.67 15:125.43
As at As at
Financial liabilities not measuried at amortised cost
Barrawings 44,217 44 30,039.93
Trade payaties 2, 774,15 3947
Otharr financial liabilities 206471 10,910,489
54,956.30 44, 669.88
Financial risk management
The Company may have exposure ko the fillowing risks arising from financial instryments:
- Credit risk
= Liguiidity risk
- Market risk

Risk management framework o

The Company's Board of Directors has

H ) |2
The Campany conducts yearly rigk as ment actitigs-to idpnti ahalyse the risks faced by the Comparyy, to set appropriate risk fmmits and controls and te
fnitor risks and adberence ta syeh | ik, Risk M i reviewad regulary o reflect changes in market eonditions and the Company’s activities, The
Company, theewgh is tradning and manhqéhqnt Famdards and procedures, aims ko maintain a disciplined ang constructive control environment in which i) employees

understand their roles and obligations, =
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i)

ki)

Credit risk

Credht risk refers o the sk that a courerparty will default on s conbractual

obligations msulting in financial loss i the Company. The Company has adopted &

poficy of ondy dealing with creditworthy counterpartes and obtaning sufficient collateral, wharsver appmpriate, as 3 means of mitigating the fk of Fnancial loss from

defaults,

The Credit risk on fiquic funds is fimited beraise thi counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by intermational credt-rating agencies.

Trade receivables

Custormer credit risk s managed as per the Campany's established palicy,

imvolves oiitaining credit approvats, establishing credit 1
Terms in the normal course of business.

A5 per the earlier Master Service Agreement (M58 executed
oustanding penod &5 recoverable from DIAL 5l 31 Tuly 2030,

DIAL amounting ko Rs 136492 Lakhs.

Further, &s regards Balfling to customers, the Company follows 2

be adjusted by the Company m case of payment defaules:

On adogtion of Ind A5 109, the Comparny uses expectad credit ks medel to
b compute the expected credit foss allowance far trade receivabies, The

experience, the management considers that in aciditson

Customers on accownt of ongoing disputes and adeguately recognises loss 3

A per policy of the Company, Impairment is created of trade recenables(Cute and Nor Cute) -

more tharm 3 years < 100%.

rits @ contin

[0 the expected

The age of trade recelvaliles (gross Carrying amcunt) inchuding Cute recovery from DIAL At tha reporting date is:

procedres and comrols relating to thie customer credit sk management, which inter aa
uausly monitining the credit worthiness of cusdomens to which the Company grants credit

by the Comparry with DIAL, recervables on acoount of CLITE billing tor customers exceeding 3 specified
Arcordingly receivables pertaining 1 the persod 8 31 Mty 2020 have been considersd as recovery from

mtmenfutrtalrdngmuam-adssecuﬂ-piqh‘-eformnfbmkquamteeuunmnemwﬁmm

ateass the impairment oss on trade receivables. The COmpAaTy USeS 3 Drowvision matrix
PrOVISION matris takes into account historical exparience with customers. Basid on the past
credit loss hased on 3 provision marix, the Compary identifies ald dues pending with
llowance agairct sich dsputed dues,

1B to 365 days (B09%), 1 to 2 years {25503, 2-3 years {50%, ) and

Current Trade ble as ak 31 March 2023 e, ;
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 | & months - 1 R i More than 1 Total
Uincisparbed trsde receivables - considercd good TA74.07 183 1.3% 258 133 748105
Undisputed trade recelvabies - which have slgificant) = A = = - -
inCredse in creget nsk
Undispited trade recefvabies - cradit impared 185.96 12353 #4.93 11ES7 495 89
Dispited tade receivables - considered dood . . = -
Disputed trade recewables - which have sgnifican ;
Increase & credit nsk
Dispted trade recevables — credit impalred . - = - -
7474.07 187 69 124,83 7751 112489
Less: Alowance for doubtfis trade recelvabies & (18.45] (711} (37.47) (111 56}
] 747407 165,24 177 .0 133
Cuwrrent Trade receivable as at 31 March 2022
Particudars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than & | 6 months - 1 1.3 . 2. yaars More than 3 Total
rihspusted trade receivabies - considened good 1.1.20.85 e 6.53 1.5 .38 1.132.42
Lndfispisted trade recohables - which have significant - - - . - -
increase in credit sk
Uindisputed trade receivables — credit impaired 2582 122,56 18740 52.71 18849
Ersputed trage recenables — congiderad oood r # = . .
Disputed trade receivables - which have sigréficant
incresse in credht risk
Disputed trade receivables - cadil impsked - i y = . -
1,120.85 28549 129,08 18930 5300 152691
Less: Alowance far doubtfil trade recelvabies - [2.58) (30643 {9370} 15272 FEEEE]
Total Trade receivabies 1120088 26.00 R ] 037 1.341.27
Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables :
Farticulars As at A% at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the begnning of the year 17964 102,41
Crisated during the year 7530 B2.41
Rehased during the vear 80.35 4,88
Balance at the end of the yoar 17458 179.64

Bank balances with banks F
Credit risk, froen halances with banks s managed by the

approved counterparties and within cresdit limits: sssigred to
annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year s

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk |5 the risk that the Company will encouriber

or-anather firancial asset. The Company's approsch to managing Equidiny 1540 ensure, a5 far as possle,
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withous incurring unacceptable lotses or msking

the net siv months. The Company also i
payabibes s other financial kabilites. v

Campany's finance departiment as per Company's policy.  Investment of surphis funds are made only with

each counterparty. Counterpacty credit Timits ase reviewed by the Compary's Board of Dirsctors on an

uitpect bo approvad of the Company's Boand of directars. The linits are seb to miramise the concentration of
rigks ant therefiore, miigate financial loss through counterparty's patential falure to make payments,

difficuilty in meeting the obligations associated with its firancial Tasities that are sefihed by delvering cash

._.

thar with expected cach outflaws on

Wt it will have: sufficient Bquidily to meet its liabiities when
damage to the Compary's reputation.

The Company aims b maintain the keval of its tash and cash equivalents in exopss of evpected cash outfiows on finanisl Eabltes (other than trade payables) over _———._
e level of expected cash inflows o frade receivabies and lnans foge -
5 the patential impact of extreme circumstance: that cannat reasonably be predected, such as natural disasters.




WAISL Limited { CIN:UT2200008 2000000051272
Motes to Financial Statement for the vear ended 31 March 2033
(Al amount in Ruspees Lakhs, unhess otherwise stabed)

Exposure to Boukdity risk

The filiowing are the remaring contrachunl maturites of fnancal Balilities at the reporting date; Thie smaunks ang gross and undiscounted, ang ncluce petimabed intenest paymanis and weluce the impact of

neiting agreaments
Az gt 21 March 2033
= : Contractual cash fows
Mon-derivative financial sbilities Carrying amount Total 6 months or less  6-12 manths 1-2 years 2-Epears  More than § years
Borramings E 342174 44,217 .94 ¥E B4 57 0,307 14 1852932 3,22270
Trade covables 2,779,105 05 &7 15 ks - . -
Cther financial Landines. 755471 786471 7,964.71 ot : =
z s-l_.ﬁ."" 54,856.30 17,016.47 684467 347.14 3 FEL]
Az 3t 31 March 2032
Mon- dechvative financial tiabiifties Carrying amount Tatal & months or hess -12 months 12 years -5 years  More than § years
L — g = 0,035.93 059,93 PRI 311871 EFITET 12 405 a8 FCTErn
Trade pavabies 3,719,47 371947 3,847 - 2 . -
Other finaal habilgies. 10491 10,510 48 10,510,4 - . 5
: asenss LI EF EL e S S Y-

i) Market risk

Mariet rigk. vt sk of kods of Fulung earnings, to lav walses or bo fiure cash flaws thet may result from & change: i the price of a financial instrument, The vatie of 3 fnancal ndrument may change 25 3

reslab of chanmges in the inbarest raties, fonson cirrency exchange rates and othar markel chdrages that sfect market risk sErisilive instnuments.

- CurTency risk
Thee: Toilgweing Table sets forth mlcemation reating 10 forsign curency exposure

USD {in Lakh)
As at A At
= — #March 2023 34 March 2032
Met Fingncial Liabiies e 0.8 .06

- Inkerest risk

[nberest rate fisk i« the risk that the fair value ar foture cash fiows of a financial instrument wiil fuctuate because of ehanges in market inlerest rabes; The Company's expoeire o thie st of Thanges in markel

interest rabes sekabes. peimarty by the Company's iong-term debt sbligations with floating inberest rates, -

Interest rate

The foifowing Lable demonstrates the Sensilvily {6 8 reasonably possible hane in inberest rabes an that portion of laans and barrawings Meched, sfter the inpact af tedis steaanting. Wi 3% biber warabie

P constant, the Company’s anofit before tas is affected throwah the impsct on ficating rate boerowings. as fosmws:

Interest rate Sensitivity Increase | { Decrease) Effect on Profit
in Basis paints Before Tax

Ax at 31 March 2023
Tarm lcan +35 [LF. 29y
25 17.79

AS &L 31 March 2032
Termm Loans +25 12078
L) .78

wi Foredgn currency risk
Az At As at
— FMarch 2023 31 Maich 2022
Nt Finarscial Lisbities 71,99 155\. 73

o Falr walug of financial assets and financial lishilities that are not measured at fair value (Bt fair valee discdosures #re required)
Thi dirischars consider 1AL the sarning smaunts of fraadal st snd fnanciad Baksline recegnised in bt financisl satements that are not (rasured AL Tair valie appegedmate thetr Tar vaues,

371 Segment reporting

Dﬁmhngngwﬁsare-\q:-nmInammmmmmmclnwwmmwwchﬂmﬂmngmxnn Mamer (LUDM). The COBM 15 considered to be the Baard of Dinsttors who makes
strategic decisons and w5 reponsible for allacating reseunces and awessng pertainance of i cperatey segments. Consigening the nabure of seraoes offensd and the type of cussmers seved, the resaunpes:
are-allocated acress the Group Interchangeably and Dusiness peronmarke K reiewad as ohe seament. Thus, in aocordance with Ind AS 108 - Segernent Reporting, the Company's Duseiess segment momprises

of & singhé reportable operating segmenit of “Information Teohnoiooy ™. Accordingly, N0 Senarale segment information has been Brovided,

Revenue of B, JLO1703 Lakns (31 March, 2022 Hs. 531665 Lakhs) anising from 2 airling comasnies (31 March J22: 2 ;e omipanies) operating fram 1ndis 5 conlribating more thar 10% of e

Compamy's revenue indiacualy,




WATSL Limited (CIN:UT2200KAZ009PLOGS1272) ] .
Mobes to Financial Statemant fior the vear ended 31 March 2023
(AR amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

arz
i)
i}

i)
vi
wh)

wii)

wii)

wii}
ix}

T3

Other Statutoey Inforniation :

The Comnpary dkes not e any Benami EVCRTY, wheEne ANy LrOCReding Nac Deen ifeliaien af Py against the Compairny for Rakding any Banami DOy !

The: Compary has not advanced or inaned o invested funds b any ather percon{s) or antils), indudng foreign entities: {Intermediaries) with the endaestanding that the Trnermedary shall: [3) dinscthy ar
ireirgctiy bervder invest in ather persons of enbities identified in sy manner whatsoever by oran behalf of the company (Litimate Beneficaries) or (b} peowe any puarantes, sty or the e o ar on behall
of the Limate Benaficiaries,

Thae Comnpany S el meceved army fund from amy persanis) or sntny(is), inchiging foreign entitkes (Funding Party} with tne yndersianding {whelhes recorded @ wiling oo otfrsise) that the Company shall;
(@) dinectiy or ivrectly lend of iwest in cther pesans or eriites identified in any manrer whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Barty (Uitimate Beneficaries) or (5] trovite any GUSreRtes, Security o the
like ‘i behall of the LHmEte Benaficars

T Company o rot hawe any charges or satisfaction which i yel to be registened with ROC beyond the statutory perod,
Thix Careany b not traded or invested in Cryfpto curmenty oo Virkud! Currenty during the financial year.

The Compeany does ol hame any transsction which is oot recondied in the books of accounts that his been surrersdensd o distiosed a5 inoone during (he year in the s assessments urder the Income Tax &,
1951 [such as, sesnch or Susesy o 80y GEher relevant provisions of he Income Tax A, 1960).

Thee: Comesary 6 not declared ac wilful dafawiter by any Dank or financial institution {35 defined inder the Companies &z, 2013} o consortium theneaf or athes lender In acoordance with the. guidelines an wilhul
defEufters s by the Reseren Bank of [ndia.

The Compary Nas (omplisd with the number of Byers for its holding i dewnstraam rompanies prescribed under clauce (87 of section 2 of tha Companios A, 2043 read with the Cemipanies [Réstiction on
Aumber of Lavers) Fsbes, 2017

The Comparry hiss not revabeed ary of &5 Froperty, Plant and Eguspenent: (inchuding Rugil-of -Use Bisets) duning the year,
Quertesty refuriyRabement of current assels filed by e campasny with Bank are in agreement with the books of ‘accours,

As at A% ar Reamcn for mors
Ratios Mumerator Denominator 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 % Change than 5% change
Current Ratic Tia Currerd Asspts Tiokal eureertt Sabulibes 1.2% 106 2%
Deint-Equity Rabio Totad Borrgwings [Curreal + Mon current)  Total Equity 2:56 5.3 -5i% Fefer Mote- A
Deim-Service Loverage Ralo Eaming for Debt Senace = Falit before  Debt serwce = Interest gayments + Frincpsl 155 108 141%  Hafer Note- B
x4 lnanoe 0SS 4 deprecalion and - repayment
armarhisakion saense
Feburn on Equity (ROE) Frofit after waw fgr U yual Ayerage Tobst Equity W't ] 2i5% Refer Noge- B
Trade Hecelvalle Turmover Revenue Fiom Operabions fverage Trade Recdivabla 56 .28 18
Tracke Fayabie Turnover Ratio  het Credi Purchades Aunrage Trade Payable 350 P B Raler Note- T
Het Capaal Turmover Batio Revanue From Operations Average Working Capits (1e. Total csrent 9.0 488 5% Refer Note- B
Sntets kst Tota Curnent Ligbilmes)
et Frafit Ratio (in %) Profit far the pear Rivnie Fram Operations 29665 18,108 194% Fafar Mote- D
Return On Capitad Emploved  Profit Before Tax ded Finanoe Costs Avprage captal Erplayed 30.58% 16, 4% 130%: Refer Mate- O
%) -rapial Employed = Net Worth + Dedferred Tax
LiaDiibias+ tofal Dobe- Deferred Lax st
Raturn an lewestment (RO1) Income Gensabed from Drneestenent Funds Average invested Funds 5. 2E% & 405 205 -

Mg

A ENPG P T ORDd eIy fatk) (S 0N Saunt of increase i sharehpiders fund due o impeovement in goofilebility of the company compaeed Do L35t vear,
B Thares i an imgeosernent in rabio due to better profitalxlity on aniounl of mprosement in revenue of the company,

C) Trade payabie burnouer rate & improved duee effective irade aeable managoments

B Mo osts: aee fioed in-natuse. Dud lo morosemast 0 resenie net peol ratio incneaded,




WAISL Limited (CIN:U72200KA2009PLC051272)
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

38. Earnings per share

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Profity {Loss) for the year ended attribiutable to equity shareholders 11,602.19 1,5359.52
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Eaming per share 5,000,000 5,000,000
{Basic and diluted)

Earnings per share (Basic) (in Rs.) 232.04 30,79
Earnings per share (Diluted) (in Rs.) 232,04 30.79
Face value per share 10 10

39. Previous year figures have been regrouped/re-arranged, wherever necessary to make it comparable with the current yaar's classification /
disclosure

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

WAISL Limited

0}.»“&__‘_,_-/-% tg-‘&m@m
P. Ramakrishna IVS RAD
Director Director
DIN: 03327834 DIN: 01541362

e -
; ’\J\K‘. / =

Rishi Mehta _/ Sailendu Panda
President & CEQ Chief Finance Officer
Karishma Aggarwal
Company Secretary
M No -A70927

Place: New Delhi

f:;;::%ﬁi_c - Date :




Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members,
WAISL Limited

Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the Financial Statements of WAISL Limited, (hereinafter referred
to as “the Company”), which comprise of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2023, the
Statement of Profit & Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and other explanatory information (collectively referred to as ‘Financial
Statements’).

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the India Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended, (“Ind As”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the Profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For the matter described below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Financial Statements. The results of audit procedures
performed by us of components not audited by us, as reported by them in their audit
reports furnished to us by the management, including those procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matter ‘ Auditor’s Response
Capitalization of property, plant and equipment
During the year ended March 31, 2023, | Our audit procedures included and were
the Company has incurred certain | not limited to the following:
capital expenditure included in capital | e Assessed the nature of the additions
work in progress. Further, items of made to property, plant and equipment,
property, plant and equipment that intangible assets, capital work-in-
are ready for its intended use as progress and intangible asset under
determined by the management have development on a test check basis to test
been capitalized in the current year. whether they meet the recognition
Judgment is involved to determine criteria as set out in para 16 to 22 of Ind
that the aforesaid capitalization meet AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment,
the recognition requirement under including intended use of management.
Ind-AS specifically in relation to | ¢ Assessed the objectivity and competence
determination of whether the criteria of the Company’s internal technical
for intended use of the management person involved in the process.
has been met.
Accordingly, the above has been
determined as a key audit matter.

Information Other than the Ind AS financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information does not include the financial Statements and our
auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial Statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial Statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and those charged with governance for the Ind
AS Financial Statements

Annual Report 2022-23_ WAISL Limited




The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial Statements, Board of Director is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial Statements. As a part
of an audit in accordance with the SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the Audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis of our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing an opinion on
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whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial Statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial Statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From
the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial Statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure 1”7 a
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statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of accounts.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind As
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as
on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration for the year ended
March 2023 has not paid/provided by the Company to its directors is in
accordance with the provision of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act;

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer note 31 to the
financial statements;

ii) The Company does not have any long term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses; and

iif) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investors Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. (a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its

(b)

(©)

(v)

knowledge and belief no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities(”Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The management has represented to us that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief no funds have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on our audit procedure that has been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (a) and (b)contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For SM M P & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120438W

Sd/-

Mudit Lakhotia

Partner

Membership No. - 417827

UDIN No. 23417827BGW]JZW2000
Jaipur, dated 5t July 2023
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Annexure -A to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of WAISL

Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report)

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books and records
examined by us and on the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate, we
further report as under:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

a) As per information and explanation provided to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property plant and equipments.

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets, by which all
Property, Plant and Equipment are verified annually. In our opinion the
periodicity of such physical verification is reasonable having regards to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As explained to us there
were no discrepancies on such verification carried out by the management.

c¢) The Company does not have any immovable property (in the nature of
‘Property, Plant and Equipment’). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(i)(C) of the order is not applicable to the Company during the year under
review.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including right-to-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against
the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and
rules made there under.

Inventory

The Company is in the business of rendering services and consequently does not
hold any physical inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the
order are not applicable to the Company during the year under review.

Investments, Guarantee / Security, Loans or Advances

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
records verified by us during the year, the Company has not made investments
in, provided any guarantee or security or granted loans and advances in the
nature of loans during the year to companies and other parties during the year.
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(iv)

(vi)

However, the Company has extended the tenure of the existing loan granted to
a Company during the year under review.

a) The Company during the year has not provided loans or provided advances
in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other
entity.

b) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the existing loan, during the
year, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion, in the case of
loans and advances in the nature of loans, the repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts are
regular.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount
for more than ninety days in respect of loan and advances in the nature of loans
given.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the unsecured loan given to
a company which has fallen due during the year, has not been extended.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms of period of repayment during the
year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

Loans/Guarantees/Investments in / Provision of Security to certain parties:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and
providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

Acceptance of Deposits:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the rules framed there under.

Maintenance of Cost Records:

As explained to us, maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the
Central Government for the Company under Section 148(1) of the Act.
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(vii)

Undisputed & Disputed Statutory Dues

(@)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the
records verified by us, the Company has been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues involving Income Tax, Tax deducted at source,
Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employee's State Insurance,
Professional Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable with
the appropriate authorities and there were no arrears under the above
heads which were due for more than six months from the date they become
payable as at the close of the year.

Keeping in view the present operations of the Company, statutes relating
to Customs Duty are not applicable to the Company during the year under
review.

As per the records, the following disputed statutory dues in respect of
Service Tax have been lying pending with the Company as at the close of
the year under review:

Name of Statute Nature of Forum where | Periodto | Amount | Amount
Dues dispute is which the | involved | unpaid
pending amount
relates (Rs. In (Rs. In
Lacs) Lacs)
Finance Act, 1944 |Interest on|Customs Excise| Financial 66.77 66.77
availment of|and Service tax| year 2010-
100% Appellate 11 and
CENVAT Tribunal 2011-12
credit on

capital goods

(viii)

(ix)

Unrecorded Income

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the
records examined by us, there were no transactions relating to previously
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) as
Income during the year.

Loans and Borrowings

a)

As per the records verified by us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of term loan availed by the Company from bank during the year
under review. The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to
financial institutions and government during the year.

The Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has availed term loans from banks during the year as well
as in the previous years which were applied for the purpose for which the
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(xi)

loans were obtained. However, pending utilization of the proceeds of term
loan for the purpose for which it is obtained, the same have been parked in
Fixed deposits account with the bank on short term basis.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year and
hence the reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any loans from any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
raised any loans, on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate company.

Proceeds of Public issue (including debt instruments) /Term Loans

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company did not raise money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting on clause 3(x)(b)
of the Order is not applicable.

Frauds on or by the Company

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the
Company or its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the
year and upto the date of this report.

c) Based on the information and explanations provided to us, no whistle
blower complaints were received by the Company during the year and
upto the date of this report.
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Compliance by a Nidhi

The Company is not a Nidhi company during the year under review and hence
the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable.

Compliance on transactions with Related Parties

As per the information and explanations given during the course of our
verification, in our opinion, all transactions with the related parties made by
the Company were in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Internal Audit

a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit,
issued to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

Non-Cash Transactions

As per the information and explanations provided to us, during the year, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with the directors within the purview of Section 192 of the
Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

Registration under Section 45-IA of RBI Act, 1934

a) As per the information and explanations provided to us and based on the
overall operations of the Company, the Company is not required to obtain
registration under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
Accordingly, clauses3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order is not applicable

¢) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no
Core Investment Companies (CICs) within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable.

(xvii) Cash Losses

The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered
by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.
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(xviii) Resignation of Statutory Auditors

(xix)

(xx)

There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors of the Company
during the year.

Material Uncertainty

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts upto to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

Corporate Social Responsibility

a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with
second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable
for the year.

b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company did not have any unspent
amount towards CSR as at the end of the financial year and hence,
reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For SM M P & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120438W

Sd/-

Mudit Lakhotia

Partner

Membership No. - 417827

UDIN No. 23417827BGW]ZW?2000
Jaipur, dated 5t July 2023
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Annexure - B to the independent Auditor’'s Report of even date on the financial
statement of the WAISL Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report)

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
WAISL Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI Those standards and the Guidance
Note that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial Statements in accordance with generally
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accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion:

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the
Company has, in all material respects, established an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting on criteria based on or considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31st 2023.

For SM M P & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120438W

Sd/-

Mudit Lakhotia

Partner

Membership No. - 417827

UDIN No. 23417827BGW]JZW2000
Jaipur, dated 5t July 2023
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